
 
 

1 
 

BOARD MEETING 

December 6, 2023      2:00 p.m. 
Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

Caddy Shack Restaurant 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
*Action Item 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call  
  
II. Public Comment 
 
III. Approval of Delegation of Authority Items* 
 
IV. Approval of September 13, 2023 Annual Board Meeting Minutes* 

 
V. New/Unfinished Business 

A. Summary of D. Bell Annual Evaluation- HANDOUT 
B. Approval of ELCNF Revised 2023-2024 Budget * 
C. Approval of ELCNF Clay County Office Lease Extension to January 31, 2025* 
D. Approval of ELCNF Palatka County Office Lease Extension to January 31, 2025* 
E. Approval of Management Decision Recommendation for ECS Audit 2022/2023* 
F. Approval of Putnam County Health Department Designee Robyn Jernigan* 
G. Approval of DCF Regional Licensing Designee Cassandra Bloom* 
H. Review of Board Membership- INFORMATIONAL 

 
VI. Staff  and Committee Reports 

A. CEO Report-Verbal 
1. United Way of St. Johns County Grant Funding Informational 

B. Finance Manager’s Report 
C. 1st Quarter Program Update  
D. Executive Administrative Committee November 1, 2023                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

• Draft of November 1, 2023 Exec/Admin Meeting Minutes - Informational 
1. Ratify Approval of the Episcopal Children’s  Services 2023/2024 Contract 

Amendment 0002-23* 
2. Ratify Approval of the Approval of 2022-2024 School Readiness Plan 

Attachment I.H. ELC Record Retention Policy* 
3. Ratify Approval of Disposal of Inventory* 
4. Ratify Approval of the minutes of the August 4, 2021 Exec/Admin 

meeting* 
5. Ratify Approval of the minutes of the May 3, 2023 Exec/Admin meeting* 



 
 

2 
 

 
 
VII. Board Absenteeism Log – INFORMATIONAL 

 
VIII. Board Comment 
 
IX. Next Meetings 

• Wednesday, March 6, 2024 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference 
Call Meeting 

• Wednesday, May 8, 2024, 10:30 a.m. – Board Meeting,  
 

X. Adjournment* 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 





















 

Board Meeting Minutes  

September 13, 2023 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

ANNUAL BOARD MEETING 

The Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

September 13, 2023 

10:30 a.m. 

 

ATTENDANCE 

 

Members Present: 

Myrna Allen,  

Leslie Barstow 

Vina Delcomyn - Treasurer 

Mary Ann Holanchock 

Krista Joseph 

Michelle Jonihakis 

Theresa Little 

Jennifer Overly 

Marsha Peacock 

Aubrie Simpson-Gotham, Vice Chair 

Michael Siragusa 

Jessica Stallings 

Cassandra Virgo 

Renee Williams, Secretary 

 

Members Absent 

Ron Coleman 

Patricia Dorsey 

Kyle Gammon 

Brian Graham  

Eleanor Hoffman 

Brian McElhone 

Shannon Shontz-Phillips 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Present: 

Dawn E. Bell, Chief Executive Officer 

Marie Hanson, Office Manager 

Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 

 

Others Present: 

Teresa Matheney, ECS representative 

Ron Joseph, Public 

 

 
 

I.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Aubrie Simpson-Gotham, Vice Chair called the meeting to order at 10:35 a.m.  Roll was taken; 

quorum was met, with 14 of the 21 board members in attendance.   

 

 

II.  PUBLIC COMMENT- None 
 

 

III.  APPROVAL OF DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ITEMS 
The Board designates authority to the Coalition’s Office Manager to review and approve the Chief 

Executive Officer’s timesheets, leave requests, work related travel expenses, and other routine 

operational requests.  The delegation items are included in the Board Packet for review.  There were 

no discussions or questions on the items. 

 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

2 

 

APPROVAL OF THE DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ITEMS* 

 

1. V. Delcomyn motioned to approve the Delegation of Authority Items as 

presented.  M. Jonihakis seconded the motion. No discussion.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

IV.  APPROVAL OF JUNE 21, 2023 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 

 

2. T. Little motioned to approve the June 21, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes, as 

presented.  L. Barstow seconded the motion. No discussion.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

V.  NEW/UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

A. APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT FY2023-24 FOR EARLY 

LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA.   

 

The updated budget is an estimate of expected expenses for the upcoming year.  Notice of Award 

for FY 2023-24, are required to operate within a Board approved budget.  

 

 

This budget maintains revenues similar to amounts used for FY2022-23 and ECS expenses at the 

contracted amount for FY2022-23.  The expenses are estimated based on the prior 12 months of 

expense.  Annual purchase orders for FY2023-24 will be created based on these budgeted 

amounts. Additional updates may come through and we will advise the board. 

 

Please note:  the “handout” for the amendment that was approved was for up to the 8/16/2023 

Notice of Award. 

 

 

3. M. Siragusa motioned the approval of the budget amendment FY 2023-24 for 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No 

further discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

B. APPROVAL OF THE EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

2023/2024 CONTRACT AMENDMENT # 001-23 

Revisions: 

 

1. Items #5, 10, and 28 were to update the School Readiness budgeted amounts, as 

well as the Additional School Readiness-Related Programs budgeted amounts per the July 

1, 2023, July 21, 2023, and August 17, 2023 Notices of Award. 

2. Items #15, 20, 21, and 29 were to update the Voluntary Prekindergarten budgeted 

amounts as well as the Additional Voluntary Prekindergarten-Related Programs budgeted 

amounts per the July 1, 2023 and July 21, 2023 Notices of Award. 

3. The remaining items were updates from the Division of Early Learning (DEL) 

2023/2024 Grant Agreement. 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

3 

 

4. M. Allen motioned the approval of the Episcopal Children’s Services 

2023/2024 Contract Amendment #001-23.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No 

further discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

C. APPROVAL OF THE 2023-2024 SCHOOL READINESS PLAN 

AMENDMENT #04 

 

School Readiness Plan was revised with the following needed updates: 

 

 Attach IF and IJ ECS Procurement - Disbursements V7 080123 

 

5. M. Hollanchock motioned to approve the 2023-2024 School Readiness Plan 

Amendment #04.  T. Little seconded the motion.  No further discussion. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

D. APPROVAL OF THE ELCNF 2022-2023 ANNUAL REPORT    

 

The Board was provided a copy of the ELCNF 2022-2023 Annual Report that was a handout at 

the meeting   and on our official website. 

 

6. T. Little motioned to approve the ELCNF 2022-2023 Annual Report.  V. 

Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No further discussion. Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

 

E. RETRO-APPROVAL OF THE ASSOCIATION OF EARLY 

LEARNING COALITIONS, INC. ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUES 

 

The Association of Early Learning Coalitions, Inc. Annual Membership Dues of $10,025.00 

 

7. M. Holanchock motioned to approve the Association of Early Learning 

Coalitions, Inc. membership dues.  C. Virgo seconded the motion.  No further 

discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

F. RETRO-APPROVAL OF THE IVENTURE SOLUTIONS FOR 

MANAGED IT SERVICES CONTRACT EFFECTIVE AUGUST 14, 

2023 

The 5 Year contract (August 14, 2023-August 14, 2028) is for managed IT services with 

iVenture Solutions: 

 

 Full time Managed services  

 Network, Server, Workstation & Asset Management with 24/7 x 365 Monitoring and 

Management. 

 Managed Anti-Virus and Firewall Software for all offices 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

4 

 Private Cloud management 

 Monthly fee schedule of $2,008.00 

 Onboarding/Transition fees with Cloud migration $3,980.00 

This contract is not to exceed $30,000 annually without written permission. 

 

 

G. APPROVAL OF SENDING FOUR BOARD MEMBERS TO THE 

NATIONAL SUMMIT ON EDUCATION 2023 IN ATLANTA 

GEORGIA  

 

8. M. Holanchock motioned to approve sending four Board members to the 

Nationa Summit on Education 2023 in Atlanta Georgia.  M. Jonihakis seconded the 

motion.  C. Virgo, T. Little, L. Barstow and J. Stallings abstained from voting. No 

further discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP REVIEW 

 

D. Bell reviewed upcoming board term dates and overall membership statuses.  No discussion or 

further comments. 

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS* 

 

By unanimous vote, the following board members were nominated and re-elected to serve as the 

Coalition Officers for the 2023-2024 fiscal year: 

 

 Interim Chair: Aubrie Simpson-Gotham 

 Vice Chair: Vina Delcomyn 

 Treasurer: Michelle Jonihakis 

 Secretary:  Dr. Myrna Allen 

 

 

9.   M. Holanchock motioned to approve the Election of Officers.  M. Siragusa 

seconded the motion.  No Discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

STANDING COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND SIGN-UP. 

 

An email was sent to all board members prior to the meeting asking for volunteers to serve on 

the Executive Admin Committee.  The committee requires the four elected officers along with an 

additional four Board Members.      

 

Based on the responses from Board Members, the following were re-elected to the  Executive 

Administration Committee:  A. Simpson-Gotham, V. Delcomyn,  M. Jonihakis, M. Allen and M. 

Siragusa. 

 

 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

5 

 

 

CODE OF ETHICS-HANDOUT  

 

The Coalition policy OP202 Code of Ethics was provided in the Board Packet. Board Members 

and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board members and staff in 

attendance signed the acknowledgement of compliance and turned them in.  Any board member 

and/or staff who were not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their Code of Ethics policy 

sent to them for review and signature.  

 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE-HANDOUT 

 

The Coalition policy OP203 Conflict of Interest was provided in the Board Packet. Board 

Members and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board and staff in 

attendance completed and signed the questionnaire portion of the policy and turned them in. Any 

board member and/or staff who were not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their 

Conflict of Interest policy sent to them for review and signature. 

 

No Comments. 

 

 

IV.  STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

CEO REPORT 

 

 REVIEW OF THE 2022-2023 BOARD SELF EVAULATION REULTS  

 

D. Bell reviewed the results of the 2022-2023 Board Self Evaluation. This evaluation allows both 

board and staff members to assess how we are all doing and identifies any gaps that we can 

provide support through materials or training.  Staff looks for those 1 or 2 ratings to see if there 

may be a gap, whether it is individually or more globally as a board.  Twelve Board Members 

participated in the self-evaluation where overall results was rated a 4.13 or “exceeds 

expectations”.  

 

CEO UPDATES 

 

D. Bell  updated the Board on the ARP funds, teacher initiatives attached to training and other 

incentive plans. 

 

 

FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT-VERBAL 

 

D. Bell gave the Finance report for the Finance Team. 

 

Annual audits and monitorin g of su b-recipient 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

6 

We are currently transmitting files to our independent auditors for the fiscal 

yearend June 30, 2023. In addition, we have completed the required 

monitoring for the 3rd and 4th quarters of 2023 with our partner Episcopal 

Children's Services. 

Q4 Financial Statements (see attach ment ) 

Attached are the Q4 financial statements for fiscal yearend June 30, 2023. We 

will close out the year with a loss"' $10k. Grant expenditures for the fiscal year 

are less than anticipated and in direct proportion to the reduction in grant 

revenue"' $7M. 

 

Targets and Restrictions 

VPK Admin percentage is currently 3.22% which is lower than our target of 

4%. SR Administration percentage is currently 3.9% which is less than our 

target of 5%. All other targets and restrictions remain in alignment with 

grant requirements to close out the fiscal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

7 

 

Balance Sheet 

 As of June 30, 2023 

ASSETS 

Cash, Operating $ 2,699,881 

Cash, Money Market 62,119 

Petty Cash 200 

Deposits 850 

DEL Receivable 620,002 

Other Receivables 890 

Prepaid Expense 3,704 

Prepaid Insurance 18,683 

Equipment 6,498 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (6,498) 
 

 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,406,328  
 

 

LIABILITIES 

Episcopal Children's Services Payable $ 3,480,681 

 

DEL Advance Payable 

Interest due to OEL 63,428 

Other AP 3,561 

Accrued Vacation 41,791 

Accrued Employee Benefits   0  

 

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  $ 3,589,461  

 

 

Net Assets @06/30/2022      (173,551) 

 

Net change YTD@ 06/30/2023         (9,581) 
 

 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets     $                3,406,329 

     $            (1) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

8 

 
 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

9 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida

FY 2022-2023

As of June 30, 2023

6/30/2023 Favorable

 Notice of Awards Annual Budget Q4 Budget Q4 Actual (Unfavorable)

School Readiness (SR) 21,572,458$      21,572,458$       20,907,005$     (665,453)$    

PDG Services 74,990 74,990$             74,990 0

CRRSA 2,144,687 2,144,687$         870,715 (1,273,972)

ESSER 87,905 87,905$             87,784 (121)

ARP 45,943,541 45,943,541$       42,196,632 (3,746,909)

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 19,977,090 19,977,090$       18,554,030 (1,423,060)

       Total  Notice of Award 89,800,671$      89,800,671$       82,691,156$     (7,109,515)$ 

Subrecipient Expense

School Readiness (SR) 20,572,458$      20,572,458$       19,934,289$     638,169$     

PDG Services 74,990 74,990 74,990$           0

CRRSA 2,144,687 2,144,687 870,715$          1,273,972

ESSER 87,905 87,905 87,784$           121

ARP 45,943,541 45,943,541 42,196,632$     3,746,909

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 19,779,090 19,779,090 18,510,264$     1,268,826

Total Subrecipient Expense 88,602,671$      88,602,671$       81,674,674$     6,927,997$   

Grant Funds Available to ELC of North FL 1,198,000$            1,198,000$             1,016,483$          (181,518)$       

Other Donations and Revenue

Interest Income 600$                 600$                  824$                224$            

Clay Electric Foundation 15,000 15,000$             0 (15,000)$      

Quality Teacher's Conference 6,000 6,000$               7,428 1,428

Miscellaneous Donations 3,500 3,500$               3,766 266

Total Revenues 1,223,100$            1,223,100$             1,028,501$          (194,599)$       

ELC of North Florida Estimated Expense

Salaries 595,000$           595,000$            571,179$          23,821$       

PR Taxes 65,000 65,000$             43,368 21,632

Health Insurance & HSA Contributions 150,000 150,000$            119,973 30,027

Pension 40,000 40,000$             25,450 14,550

Life, Disability, and WC 18,000 18,000$             9,219 8,781

Staff Development 10,000 10,000$             9,574 426

Contract Services 12,000 12,000$             17,988 (5,988)

Auditing 15,000 15,000$             16,800 (1,800)

Legal 500 500$                  500

Printing & Reproduction 2,000 2,000$               332 1,668

Repairs & Maintenance 1,000 1,000$               2,850 (1,850)

Office Sites - Occupancy 65,000 65,000$             48,361 16,639

Postage, Freight & Delivery 4,000 4,000$               601 3,399

Rentals - Office Equipment 6,000 6,000$               2,649 3,351

Office Supplies 12,000 12,000$             6,706 5,294

Communications 22,000 22,000$             21,685 315

D & O Insurance 2,700 2,700$               3,342 (642)

General Liability 8,700 8,700$               7,859 841

Equipment <$5000 4,500 4,500$               5,064 (564)

Equipment >$5000 4,000 4,000$               9,803 (5,803)

Travel - In State 8,000 8,000$               2,990 5,010

Travel - Out of State 6,000 6,000$               5,787 213

Travel - Local 7,000 7,000$               4,899 2,101

Bank Fees 500 500$                  11 489

Software/Licenses/Support 20,000 20,000$             8,605 11,395

Web Service 35,000 35,000$             36,098 (1,098)

Other employee expenditures 4,000 4,000$               4,000

ADP Fees 9,000 9,000$               7,839 1,161

Dues & Subscriptions 15,000 15,000$             11,740 3,260

Taxes, Licenses and Fees 800 800$                  145 655

Misc. - Other Current Charges 9,000 9,000$               13,292 (4,292)

Quality Program 65,000 65,000$             23,875 41,125

Total ELC North Florida Estimated Expense 1,216,700 1,216,700 1,038,082 178,618

Surplus or (Loss) 6,400$                    6,400$                     (9,581)$                 (15,981)$          



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4TH QUARTER PROGRAM UPDATE 

T. Dixon reported on the following: 

 

Coalition Activities:   

 The Division of Early Learning (DEL) Fiscal Monitoring occurred October 31 – 
November 3, 2022.  We received the Final report 01/24/23, and we received the close-
out letter (email) May 9, 2023. 

 The entire School Readiness (SR) Plan for 2022-2024 was submitted to DEL October 
6, 2022.  Three documents have not been approved as of today’s date.  The Coalition 
continues to follow up with DEL to have them reviewed and approved.   

 Coalition and ECS staff held an “Open Discussions Lunch” meeting April 17, 2023, 
which continues to be a valuable process. 

 The Coalition’s COOP (Continuation of Operations Plan) for 2023/2024 was submitted 
to DEL by the May 1, 2023 deadline. 

 The Coalition’s 2023/2024 Subcontractor Monitoring Plan was completed and 
submitted to ECS and DEL. 

 The DEL Grant Agreement as well as the Episcopal Children Services (ECS) contract 
were completed and approved in time for July 1, 2023 funding and services. 

 The 2023/2024 Coalition’s Anti-Fraud Plan was submitted to DEL’s Office of Inspector 
General May 17, 2023 (and was approved July 26, 2023). 
 

Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) Contract Monitoring:  

 

The 2022/2023 Third Quarter Monitoring was performed May 15 - 26, 2023.  This monitoring 
included all DEL required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK.  Additional areas of 
review were Developmental Screenings and ARPA Provider Application Monitoring.  From this 
review, there were five compliance issues.  These required staff refresher training sessions and 
two required corrections during monitoring.  The staff trainings were held and corrections were 
made before the final report.   
 
The 2022/2023 Fourth Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for August 14-25, 2023.  This 
monitoring will include all DEL required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK. 
Additional area of review will be Data Security Systems Updates, SR Plan Compliance III. 
B. Infant/Toddler, ARPA Provider Application Monitoring, Non-direct Costs Review (3rd and 
4th quarters combined), and Fiscal Year-end Overview.  
 
 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 



 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2023 

 

 

11 

 

EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  NO AUGUST MEETING 

  

 

BOARD ABSENTEEISM LOG- INFORMATIONAL 

 

 

BOARD COMMENTS 

 

No Comments. 

 

 

NEXT MEETINGS 

The next scheduled meetings are as follows: 

 

 Wednesday, November 1, 2023 , 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 

Meeting 

 Wednesday, December 6, 2023, 2:00 p.m. –Board Meeting,  World Golf Village, Caddy 

Shack Restaurant. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT* 

 

 10.  T. Little motioned for adjournment at 11:43 a.m.  L. Barstow 

       seconded the motion.  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

Minutes Submitted By:  Marie Hanson, Office Manager 



Dawn Bell’s Annual 2022-2023 Evaluation Summary 

 

 The evaluation was conducted  on September 13, 2023 with the following Board 
members serving as the Evaluation Team: 

o Aubrie Simpson-Gotham, Vina Delcomyn, Mary Ann Holanchock and Michael 
Siragusa 

 A total of 21 evaluations were emailed to board members.  Six members completed the 
evaluation and 15 members did not return a completed form. 

 Out of a 1-5 rating scale, 1= unsatisfactory and 5= outstanding:  Dawn’s overall rating 
score was 4.40, which earned a final rating of very good to outstanding. 

 Dawn’s next evaluation period ends September 2024 

 If any Board member would like to see a copy of the final compiled evaluation results, 
please contact Marie Hanson. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of revisions to the 2023-2024 budget for Early Learning Coalition of 
North Florida.   
 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

On Sep 29, The Division of Early Learning sent a revision to the Notice of 
Award for the 2023-2024 Grant Year.  Compared to our previously approved 
budget this revision reflects the actual NOA for FY2023-24. 
 
The allocation of these funds between ECS and ELCNF has been agreed to by 
both entities. 
 
If not approved, we will not have a budget that reconciles to the Notice of 
Award. 

 
How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Board Approval and submission to DEL. 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida
FY 2023-2024

6/26/2023 8/16/2023 9/8/2023 9/29/2023

2023-2024 2023-2024 2023-2024 2023-2024

 Notice of Awards Proposed Budget DEL Update DEL Update DEL Update

School Readiness (SR) 21,600,000$              25,313,287$                       25,313,287$                       25,313,287$              

PDG Services 75,000 0

ARPA 25,000,000 3,051,349 12,668,927 13,155,584

CRRSA 1,279,153 1,279,153 1,279,153

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 20,000,000 18,133,727 18,133,727 18,133,727

       Total  Notice of Award 66,675,000$              47,777,516$                      57,395,094$                      57,881,751$              

Subrecipient Expense

School Readiness (SR) 20,400,000$              24,313,287$                       24,313,287$                       24,313,287$              

PDG Services 75,000

ARPA 25,000,000 3,051,349 12,668,927 13,155,584

CRRSA 1,279,153 1,279,153 1,279,153

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 19,950,000 17,883,727 17,883,727 17,883,727

Total Subrecipient Expense 65,425,000$              46,527,516$                      56,145,094$                      56,631,751$              

Grant Funds Available to ELC of North FL 1,250,000$                1,250,000$                         1,250,000$                         1,250,000$                

Other Donations and Revenue `

Interest Income 600$                            600$                                    600$                                    600$                            

Quality Teacher's Conference 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

Miscellaneous Donations 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500

Total Revenues 1,260,100$                1,260,100$                         1,260,100$                         1,260,100$                

ELC of North Florida Estimated Expense

Salaries 615,000$                    615,000$                            615,000$                            615,000$                    

PR Taxes 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000

Health Insurance & HSA Contributions 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000

Pension 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

Life, Disability, and WC 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000

Staff Development 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Contract Services 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

Auditing 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

Legal 500 500 500 500

Printing & Reproduction 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Repairs & Maintenance 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Office Sites - Occupancy 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000

Postage, Freight & Delivery 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Rentals - Office Equipment 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

Office Supplies 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000

Communications 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000

D & O Insurance 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700

General Liability 8,700 8,700 8,700 8,700

Equipment <$1,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500

Equipment >$1,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Travel - In State 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Travel - Out of State 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

Travel - Local 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000

Bank Fees 500 500 500 500

Software/Licenses/Support 22,400 22,400 22,400 22,400

Web Service 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000

Other employee expenditures 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

ADP Fees 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000

Dues & Subscriptions 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

Taxes, Licenses and Fees 800 800 800 800

Misc. - Other Current Charges 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000

Quality Program 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000

Total ELC North Florida Estimated Expense 1,267,100 1,267,100 1,267,100 1,267,100

Surplus or (Loss) (7,000)$                       (7,000)$                               (7,000)$                               (7,000)$                       



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc 
Board Meeting 

December 2, 2020 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of ELCNF Clay County Office Lease Extension to January 31, 2025 
and Rental Increase to $890.00 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Staff requests board approval to approve the lease extension of the ELCNF 
Clay County Office.      
 
The space is 600 square feet with two large offices, half bath and storage area 
for supplies.  The rent will be increased from $840 per month to $890 per 
month and includes water.  The office houses our Clay County Outreach 
Assistant, our Clay County Reading Pals resource room and library as well as 
provides a conference area for training. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 

• The Coalition would need to find new comparable office space for 
Clay County staff and Reading Pal Volunteers and our Clay County 
Literacy Outreach programs could be less effective in delivering the 
quality and level of service expected and renowned for. 
 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of lease agreement extension and rental increase listed above. 

 





ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of The Northeast Florida Educational Consortium Lease Renewal 
Effective February 1,2024 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Staff requests board approval to continue the NEFEC lease agreement of rental 
of office space in Palatka, FL.  The current lease ends January 31, 2024, and 
the new lease will start Feb. 1, 2024 and conclude January 31, 2025, with the 
option of automatic renewal for 12 months, starting Feb. 1 2024 and 
concluding on January 31, 2025 at the monthly rental rate of $300.00.    
 
The space currently houses our Grants and Operations Manager, Tajaro Dixon 
and one office is used for Coalition storage.  The total for the two rooms is 
$300.00 per month and includes electric. There is no increase from the 
addendum of August 1, 2023 lease and is still considered an excellent monthly 
rent.  
 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 

• The Coalition would need to find comparable office space for Putnam 
County staff, the Putnam County Reading Pals resources room, and 
storage. 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of lease agreement listed above. 

 









































Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of Management Decision Recommendation for ECS 
Audit 2022/2023 

Reason for Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

To approve management decision to consider the ECS annual 
audit properly reviewed and therefore resolved.  
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• The Coalition would not be in compliance with policy 
requiring committee approval. 
 

How the Action will be accomplished Management decision to be approved at 12/6/2023 Board 
meeting. 

 



ELC OF North Florida, Inc. 
 

Management Decision Recommendation 

ECS Audit Report 

For FYE June 30, 2023 

 

 

FORVIS, LLP performed the June 30, 2023 audit of Episcopal Children’s Services, Inc.  

The report was issued on October 25, 2023 and subsequent events were evaluated 

through the date of issuance. This report was reviewed by ELC management and staff. 

The report and audited financial statements are on file and available to the Board for 

review at anytime. 

 

A summary of the audit results is as follows: 

 

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report 

a. Expressed an unqualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

of ECS. 

b. Stated no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements 

of Episcopal Children's Services, Inc. were disclosed during the audit. 

c. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of the 

financial statements. 

d. Expressed an unqualified opinion on the major award programs. 

e. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of major 

federal programs. 

 

2. The Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls 

a. Expressed no opinion on ECS internal controls.   

b. Reported no material weaknesses to internal controls.  

c. Expressed no opinion on ECS compliance and other such matters.  

d. The results of the internal control testing disclosed no issues of 

noncompliance or other matters that would be required to be reported 

under Government Auditing Standards. 

 

3. Supplemental Information 

a. There were no findings in relation to prior audits. 

b. There were no current audit findings on the ECS Financial Statements. 

c. There were no current audit findings or questioned costs on the ECS 

Major Federal Awards Program Audit. 

d. ECS qualifies as a low risk auditee. 

 

 

With no audit findings, material weaknesses, or issues of noncompliance, this audit is 

considered complete. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of the County Health Department Director or 
Designee, Robyn Jernigan 
 

Reason for Recommended Action  
Robyn Jernigan is the designee for the Putnam County Health 
Department.  Robyn is the Healthy Families Program Manager 
for Putnam County. Robyn holds a master’s degree in 
Psychology, specializing in addiction and has worked in the 
daycare setting with ages two and up. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would continue to be out of compliance by not 

having a mandated seat filled. 
  

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval; then OEL will be notified via Plan 
Amendment/Board Roster submission. 

 
 
 



Page 1 of 3 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION 

NAME: Robyn Jernigan 
(Please Print) 

ADDRESS:  2801 Kennedy Street  Palatka  FL  32177 

Street  City State Zip 

MAILING ADDRESS: 2801 Kennedy Street  Palatka  FL  32177 

City State Zip 

PHONE:  

CELL PHONE: 

FAX:   

 Day & month of birthday:  

EMAIL: robyn.jernigan@flhealth.gov 

*************************************************** 

EMPLOYER: Florida Department of Health Putnam County/Healthy Families Florida/Putnam 

ADDRESS:  2801 Kennedy Street          Palatka              FL              32177 

Street City State Zip 

MAILING ADDRESS:  Same as above 

City  State Zip 

PHONE: 386-326-3330 or 386-872-2087  FAX: 386-326-3398 

*************************************************** 

Please indicate where you would prefer Board information to be sent: 

Employer Address  OR Personal Address  

COMMENTS: 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Ste. 103, St. Augustine, FL  32086 

PH: (904) 342-2267 

FX: (904) 342-2268 

www.elcnorthflorida.org 

http://www.elcnorthflorida.org/


  

 

Page 2 of 3 

1. Tell us why you would like to serve on the Coalition. 

As Program Manager for the Healthy Families Putnam program in Putnam County, FL 

and with past experience throughout the community, I feel as if I would be a good 

addition to the board and would like to increase my education in the new happenings in 

Early Education to be able to provide better services to those in my community. 

 

2. What concerns do you have relating to early care and education? 

The availability of affordable childcare in Putnam County. How to provide the education 

to those that do not place their children in a childcare facility.  

 

 

3. What strengths will you bring to the Coalition? 

I hold a master’s degree in Psychology, specializing in addiction, have worked in the 

daycare setting with ages two and up, I’m a longstanding resident of Putnam County, FL.  

 

 

4. Do you or anyone in your immediate family derive an income from a childcare or 

pre-school program? 

No. 

 

5. Do you serve on any other boards?  If so, please list. 

I serve on the Circuit 7 Community Alliance, Healthy Families Florida Advisory Board, 

Healthy Families Putnam Advisory Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

Page 3 of 3 

FOR PROVIDERS ONLY: 

 

1. Name of the Provider you represent:         

 

2. Position:             

 

3. Please describe your center and the services provided to Baker, Bradford, Clay, 

Nassau, Putnam and/or St. Johns Counties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Does your center have a religious affiliation (faith-based provider)? 

 

   YES 

 

    NO 

 

 

5. From what source do the majority of your funds come? 

 

    Private 

 

    Subsidies 

 

    Parent fees 

 

    Other 

 
 

 



ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of DCF Regional Administrator or Designee: Cassandra 
Bloom 
 

Reason for Recommended Action Cassandra currently serves as the supervisor for licensing in 
Circuit 7, which includes St. John’s county. She has been 
designated to serve on the board on behalf of Mala Ramatour, 
Program Manager for the Department of Children and Families 
in accordance with the new State established guidelines that two 
DCF representatives or designees serve on Coalition Boards. 
 
Cassandra’s term would extend from December 2023 – 
December 2027. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would continue to be out of compliance by not 

having a mandated seat filled. 
  

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval; then OEL will be notified via Plan 
Amendment/Board Roster submission. 

 
 
 
 



,�· ) 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

C
EARLY 
LEARNING 
COALITION 

North Florida 

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Ste. 103, St. Augustine, FL 32086 
PH: (904) 342-2267 

FX: (904) 342-2268 
www.elcnorthflorida.org 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION 

NAME, {Ja-;,sMdr0c 6. 7:;;) oarq 
(Please Print) 

/street City / State

ADDRESS: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

City State 

PHONE: Nf-

Zip 

-=r-7

FAX: /\j A--
Day & month of birthday: =_ 

EMAIL: -----------------------------

*************************************************** 

EMPLOYER:-:bt�t <tt:ClaclJ WJ + 'Fcwti! � e\ ) Qff-ice<ar u Ce-v\ G.( n ca-= 
ADDRESS: :).. ID bl n I me-ito Ave. ;:t:=,� +ona �C,h +L g;;, /If:

Street SJ
i
1

e.-
'-/3() City State Zip 

MAILING ADDRESS: s a vYl e- Q.D... a,;bol.,c..
City 

*************************************************** 

Please indicate where you would prefer Board information to be sent: 
Employer Address DOR Personal Address '/i( 

State Zip 

COMMENTS: __________________________ _ 

Page 1 of 4 





Page 1 of 3 

 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

 

B O A R D  M E M B E R S H I P  S U M M A R Y  

As of December 6, 2023 
 

Position Name Term Start Date Term End Date 

B A K E R  
Total Private Sector 0 

B R A D F O R D  

    

Total Private Sector 0 

C L A Y  
Governor Appointee Private Sector Ron Coleman November 22, 2013 April 30, 2016 

Governor Appointee Private Sector *Brian H. Graham May 14, 2015 April 30, 2019 

Private Sector Vina Delcomyn -  Treasurer September 2020 September 2024 

Total Private Sector 3 

P U T N A M  
Representative of Programs for Children with Disabilities 

under the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 

Act Marsha Peacock September 2021 September 2025 

County Health Department Director or Designee Robyn Jernigan December 2023 December 2027 

Appointed by Putnam County District Superinendent of 

Schools Jessica Stallings March 2022 

 

March 2026 

    

Total Private Sector 0   

S T .  J O H N S  
Member Appointed by Bd. of County Commissioners or 

the Governing Board of a Municipality Krista Joseph March 2023 March 2027 

Head Start Director *Brian McElhone July 2021 July 2025 

Governor Appointee Private Sector CHAIR Vacant, Chair   

Private Sector Mike Siragusa September 2018 September 2026 

Private Sector Michelle Jonihakis December 2018 December 2026 

Private Sector    

Total Private Sector 3 

M U L T I  C O U N T I E S  
DCF Regional Administrator or Designee Cassandra Virgo June 2022 June 2026 

DCF Regional Licensing Designee Cassandra Bloom December 2023 December  2027 

Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or *Renee Williams, Secretary (Baker, September 2014 September 2026 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

 

Designee Clay, Nassau, Putnam, St. Johns) 

President of a Florida College System or Designee 
* Dr. Myrna Allen,  
(Clay, Putnam, St. Johns) September 2014 September 2026 

Representative of Private Family Home Child Care 

Providers 
Patricia Dorsey 
(Putnam County) March 2023 March 2027 

Representative of Faith Based Child Care Providers 
*Theresa Little,  
(Putnam, St. Johns) December 7, 2016 December 2025 

Private Sector 
 Leslie A. Barstow 
(St. Johns) March 2022 March 2026 

Private Sector 

Aubrie Simpson Gotham, Vice 

Chair 
(St. Johns) December 2018 December 2026 

Private Sector  Shannon Shontz-Phillips June 21,2023  June 2027 

Private Sector Mary Ann Holanchock June 2021 June 2025 

Total Private Sector 4 

Combined Total Private Sector (Must comprise 

MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 10 

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 20 
  

 

 Ron Coleman- Governor appointee for the private sector has filed paperwork with the Governor’s office for approval of a second term.  I 

received word that Ron is approved, just waiting on documentation. 

 

 Nancy Pearson- Governor appointee for the private sector has retired effective April 30, 2021.  We are working with the Governor’s office 

for approval of a new Board Chair appointee.   Nancy officially retired April 30, 2021. 

 

 Dr. Myrna Allen- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been reappointed as the Designee by President Joe Pickens 

of St. Johns River State College to serve a second term.  The Board approved Dr. Allen’s second term on the September 19, 2018 meeting.  

Dr. Allen’s second term expired September 2022. The Board approved Dr. Allen’s third term on the septmeber 14, 2022 meeting.  Dr. Allen’s 

third term expires Septemer 14, 2026.  (President of a Florida College system designee) 

 

 Renee Williams- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been  reappointed for a second term as the Designee by 

President Bruce Ferguson of the Regional Workforce Board.  The Board approved R. Williams second term on the September 19, 2018 

meeting.  R. Williams second term expired September 2022. The Board approved R Williams third term on the September 14, 2022 meeting.  

R Williams third term expires Sepember 2026. (Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or Designee) 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

 

 Joy Farris-Term date is March 16,2020.  The Board approved J. Farris’  second term on the March 11, 2020 meeting.  J. Farris’ second term 

expires March 2024.  March 8, 2023 Joy resigned the Board. 

 

 Theresa Little- 1st term expired December 2020.  The Board approved for a second term at the March 10, 2021 Board Meeting with the 

second term ending March 2025. 

 

 Teresa Metheney – ECS Representative -The position was eliminated from the Board March 2022. 

 

 Andrew Warnock, DCF Regional  Admin/Designee – Was replaced with Cassandra Virgo ate the  June 15, 2022 Board meeting. 

 

 Cassandra Virgo, DCF Regional Admin/Designee – Board approved June 2022 and expires June 2026.   

 

 Rebecca Chandler, DCF Regional Admin/Designee – Board approved March 2022, term expired March 2026.  Replaced by Jennifer 

Overley December 2022. 

 

 Jessica Bishop, Putnam County Health Dept. Designee- Board approved June 2021.Was replaced by Eleanor Hoffman September 2022. 

 

 Eleanor Hoffman, Putnam County Health Dept. Designee – Board approved September 2022, expires September 2026 

 

 Whitney Kersey-Graves  - March 2023, removed from Board per a DEL review, no private sector member can be employed by public 

sector.  

 

 Kyle Gammon – Term expired 9/2023 – did not stay on for another term. 

 

 Jennifer Overly –   DCF rep replaced by Cassandra Bloom.  Term starts 12/6/2023 

 

 

Mandatory Seats: All mandatory seats have been filled. 

 

 Combined Total Private Sector (Must be comprised of MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership).  We currently have 10 private sector 

members. 
 

 Total Membership: 15 to 30 members.  We currently have 21 board members. 



 
 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 
Finance Manager’s Report 
Board Meeting 
Wednesday - December 6, 2023                          
 
 
 
Desk Reviews and Audits 
Our Desk Review for the last half of FY2023 DEL is currently in progress.  We have completed the 
information requests from our external auditors, but have not yet received an audit report. 
 
Q1 Financial Statements (see attachment) 
Attached are the Q1 financial statements for FY23-24.  The Coalition’s year to date surplus is slightly less 
than was budgeted.  Grant expenses are less than anticipated at this time and in direct proportion to the 
reduction in grant revenue.   
 
Targets and Restrictions  
VPK Admin percentage is currently 3.98% which is less than our target of 4%.  SR Administration 
percentage is currently 4.76% which is less than our target of 5%.  ARPA admin percentage is currently 
33.1% which is greater than our target of 5%. This will be in alignment once spending in the other OCA’s 
starts. All other targets and restrictions remain in alignment with grant requirements. 
 
 

Chris Spell 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida

Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2023

ASSETS

Cash, Operating 4,791,762$                

Cash, Money Market 62,219

Petty Cash 200

Deposits 850

DEL Receivable 3,840,178

Other Receivables 1,101

Prepaid Expense 1,558

Prepaid Insurance 14,616

Equipment 6,498

   Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (6,498)

 

TOTAL ASSETS 8,712,485$                

LIABILITIES

Episcopal Children's Services Payable 3,735,973$                

DEL Advance Payable 5,117,295$                

Interest due to DEL 14,441$                     

Other AP 1,037$                       

Accrued Vacation 25,774$                     

Accrued Employee Benefits 846

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,895,367$                

Net Assets @ 6/30/2023 (183,131)

Net change YTD @ 9/30/2023 249

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 8,712,485$                



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida

FY 2023-2024

As of September 30, 2023

7/1/2023 Favorable

 Notice of Awards Annual Budget Q1 Budget Q1 Actual (Unfavorable)

School Readiness (SR) 25,313,287$              6,328,322$                5,436,384$                (891,938)$                 

CRRSA 1,279,153 319,788$                   (319,788)

ARPA 13,155,584 3,288,896$                2,799,421 (489,475)

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 18,133,727 4,533,432$                4,470,463 (62,969)

       Total  Notice of Award 57,881,751$              14,470,438$              12,706,268$              (1,764,169)$               

Subrecipient Expense

School Readiness (SR) 24,313,287$              6,078,322$                5,158,792$                919,530$                   

CRRSA 1,279,153$                319,788$                   -$                         319,788$                   

ARPA 13,155,584$              3,288,896$                2,799,421$                489,475$                   

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 17,883,727$              4,470,932$                4,451,508$                19,424$                    

Total Subrecipient Expense 56,631,751$              14,157,938$              12,409,721$              1,748,217$                

Grant Funds Available to ELC of North FL 1,250,000$                312,500$                   296,548$                   (15,952)$                    

Other Donations and Revenue

Interest Income 600$                         150$                         601$                         451$                         

Quality Teacher's Conference 6,000$                      -$                         -$                         -$                         

Miscellaneous Donations 3,500$                      875$                         45$                           (830)$                        

Total Revenues 1,260,100$                313,525$                   297,193$                   (16,332)$                    

ELC of North Florida Estimated Expense

Salaries 615,000$                   153,750$                   150,568$                   3,182$                      

PR Taxes 65,000$                    16,250$                    11,434$                    4,816$                      

Health Insurance & HSA Contributions 150,000$                   37,500$                    35,925$                    1,575$                      

Pension 50,000$                    12,500$                    7,405$                      5,095$                      

Life, Disability, and WC 18,000$                    4,500$                      2,135$                      2,366$                      

Staff Development 10,000$                    2,500$                      3,463$                      (963)$                        

Contract Services 15,000$                    3,750$                      1,500$                      2,250$                      

Auditing 15,000$                    -$                         -$                         -$                         

Legal 500$                         125$                         -$                         125$                         

Printing & Reproduction 2,000$                      500$                         -$                         500$                         

Repairs & Maintenance 1,000$                      250$                         -$                         250$                         

Office Sites - Occupancy 70,000$                    17,500$                    12,582$                    4,918$                      

Postage, Freight & Delivery 4,000$                      1,000$                      109$                         891$                         

Rentals - Office Equipment 6,000$                      1,500$                      409$                         1,091$                      

Office Supplies 12,000$                    3,000$                      3,049$                      (49)$                         

Communications 22,000$                    5,500$                      4,943$                      557$                         

D & O Insurance 2,700$                      -$                         -$                         -$                         

General Liability 8,700$                      -$                         -$                         -$                         

Equipment <$5000 4,500$                      1,125$                      1,275$                      (150)$                        

Equipment >$5000 4,000$                      1,000$                      -$                         1,000$                      

Travel - In State 8,000$                      2,000$                      1,998$                      2$                            

Travel - Out of State 6,000$                      1,500$                      -$                         1,500$                      

Travel - Local 7,000$                      1,750$                      1,534$                      216$                         

Bank Fees 500$                         125$                         25$                           100$                         

Software/Licenses/Support 22,400$                    5,600$                      2,271$                      3,329$                      

Web Service 45,000$                    11,250$                    26,785$                    (15,535)$                   

Other employee expenditures 4,000$                      1,000$                      -$                         1,000$                      

ADP Fees 9,000$                      2,250$                      1,495$                      755$                         

Dues & Subscriptions 15,000$                    3,750$                      11,129$                    (7,379)$                     

Taxes, Licenses and Fees 800$                         200$                         54$                           146$                         

Misc. - Other Current Charges 9,000$                      2,250$                      392$                         1,858$                      

Quality Program 65,000$                    16,250$                    16,466$                    (216)$                        

Total ELC North Florida Estimated Expense 1,267,100$                310,175$                   296,944$                   13,231$                      

Surplus or (Loss) (7,000)$                      3,350$                        249$                           (3,101)$                      



  
 

 

 

           A United Way Agency Funded by the State of Florida 

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL  32086 

904-342-2267 
www.elcnorthflorida.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:  All Board Members 
From:  Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Date:  October 9, 2023 
Subject:  2023/2024 First Quarter Program Update and Quality Assurance Activities 
 

Coalition Activities:   

 The entire School Readiness (SR) Plan for 2022-2024 was submitted to DEL October 6, 2022.  The last three 
documents were approved September 20, 2023.     

 The Coalition received an additional notice of award September 29, 2023 and the Episcopal Children’s Services 
(ECS) Contract Amendment #2 is in today’s packet. 

 The Coalition staff completed the 2023/2024 Internal Controls Questionnaire (ICQ).  In addition, ECS completed 
this same ICQ (as they do each year) and their responses are reviewed by Coalition staff for any needed follow-
up and/or approval.  There were no issues for follow up. 

 The Coalition staff met the October 1, 2023 DEL deadline for all the annual items; annual report, ELC staffing 
changes, inventory, sub-recipient monitoring plan, CEO annual review, fiscal prior year revenue and expense 
report and current year budget. 

 All Coalition staff completed their annual review of Anti-Fraud plan, policies and practices in July. 
 
 

Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) Contract Monitoring:  
 

The 2022/2023 Fourth Quarter Monitoring was performed August 14-25, 2023.  This monitoring included all DEL required 
“eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK.  Additional areas of review were Data Security Systems Updates, SR Plan 
Compliance III. B. Infant/Toddler, ARPA Provider Application Monitoring, Non-direct Costs Review (3rd and 4th quarters 
combined), and Fiscal Year-end Overview.  From this review, there were nine compliance issues.  These required corrections 
during monitoring and staff refresher training sessions.  The staff trainings were held and corrections were made before the 
final report.   
 
The 2023/2024 First Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for November 3-17, 2023.  This monitoring will include all DEL 
required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK. Additional areas of review will be Annual Data Security 
Systems Review and ARPA Provider Application Monitoring. 
 
 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 

 



 

Exec/Admin Meeting 

November 1, 2023 

 
 

Executive/Administrative MEETING 

Conference Call 

Dial 1-888-296-6500 and enter Guest Code 966582 

November 1, 2023 

10:30 a.m. 

 

ATTENDANCE 

 

Members Present: 

Aubrie Simpson, Gotham, Interim Chair 

Michelle Jonihakis 

Dr. Myrna Allen 

Theresa Little 

Michael Siragusa 

 

Members Absent: 

Vina Delcomyn,  excused 

 

 

Staff Present: 

Dawn Bell, Chief Executive Officer 

Tajaro Dixon, Grants & Operations Manager 

Marie Hanson, Office Manager 

 

Others Present: 

None 

 

 
 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

A. Simpson-Gotham called the meeting to order at 10:36 a.m.  M. Hanson took Roll Call; 

quorum was met with 5 of the 6 Exec/Admin committee members in attendance.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

 

APPROVAL OF THE EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES 2023/2024 CONTRACT 

AMENDMENT 0002-23* 

 

1. M. Siragusa motioned to approve the Approval of the Episcopal Children’s 

Services 2023/2024 Contract Amendment 0002-23.  T. Little seconded the 

motion. No discussion-motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF 2022-2024 SCHOOL READINESS PLAN ATTACHMENT I.H. ELC 

RECORD RETENTION POLICY* 

 

 



 

Exec/Admin Committee Meeting 

October 12, 2022 

 

2 

2.  M. Jonihakis motioned the approval of the 2022-2024 School Readiness Plan 

attachment I.H. ELC Record Retention Policy.  M. Siragusa seconded the 

motion.  No discussion, motion passed unanimously.  

 

APPROVAL OF DISPOSAL OF INVENTORY* 

 

3. T. Little motioned to approve the Disposal of Inventory.  M. Siragusa 

seconded the motion.  No discussion, motion passed unanimously. 

 

ADDENDUM ADDED AFTER MEETING:  VOTES TAKEN VIA EMAIL RESONSES 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 4, 2021 EXECUTIVE/ADMIN 

MEETING* 

 

4. All Exec/Admin members responded with their approval of the August 4, 

2021 minutes with no discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE MAY 3, 2023 EXECUTIVE/ADMIN 

MEETING* 

 

5.  All Exec/Admin members responded with their approval of the MAY 3, 

2023 with no discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

Exec/Admin Committee COMMENTS 

 

 

NEXT MEETINGS 

 

The next scheduled meetings are as follows: 

 

 Board Meeting:  December 6, 2023, 2:00 p.m. Caddy Shack Restaurant  

 Exec/Admin Meeting:  March 6, 2024 10:30 a.m. Conference Call 

 

ADJOURNMENT* 

 

6. M. Siragusa motioned for adjournment at 10:45 a.m.   

T. Little seconded the motion.  No discussion, motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

Minutes submitted by Marie Hanson, Office Manager, November 1, 2023 



BOARD

MEMBER ABSENTEEISM LOG

By-Laws   Unexcused   absences from  two (2)

3.2.8.  Mandated

members with   three (3)  consecutive 

X = Attended

No meeting No meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting

April -22 May 22 6/15/2022 July 2022 August 2022 9/14/2022 October 2022 November 2022 12/7/2022 January February 1 3/8/2023 April 1, 2023 May 2023 June 2023 July August 2023 September 13, 2023

Allen, M.
EXCUSED X Excused Excused X X

Barstow, L.
X X X X X X

Bishop, J.
EXCUSED No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Chandler, R.
EXCUSED Excused No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Coleman, R.
X X Excused X X Excused

Delcomyn, V.
X X X X X X

Dorsey, Patricia
X X Excused

Farris, J.
X Excused X X No longer a member No longer a member

Gammon, K.
EXCUSED X Excused X X Excused

Garcia, M. No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Graham, B.
EXCUSED Excused X Excused Excused Excused

Hoffman, E.
X X Excused Excused Excused

Holanchock, M.
X X X Excused X X

Hill, M. No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Johns, J. No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Jonihakis, M.
X Excxcused X X Excused X

Joseph, Krista
X X X

Kersey Graves, W.
X X X X no longer a 

member

No longer a member No longer a member

Little, T. X X X Excused No longer a member No longer a member

Matheny, T
No longer a 

member

No longer a 

member

No longer a 

member

No longer a 

member

No longer a member No longer a member

McElhone, B.
X X Excused Excused X Excused

Montoro, Bianco
No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Overly, Jennifer
X X X X

Pearson, N.
No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Peacock, M.
X X Excused X X X

Puckett, C.
No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Simpkins, K.
No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Simpson-Gotham,

A.

X X X Excused X X

Siragusa, M.
EXCUSED X X X X X

Stallings, J
X X X Excused Excused Excused

Tauch, P.
X X Excused Excused No longer a member No longer a member

Virgo, Cassandra
EXCUSED Excused X Excused X X

Warnock, Andrew
NO LONGER  A 

MEMBER

NO LONGER  A 

MEMBER

NO LONGER  A 

MEMBER

NO LONGER  A 

MEMBER

No longer a member No longer a member

Whitehurst, C.
X X Excused NO LONGER A 

MEMBER

No longer a member No longer a member

Williams, R.
X X X X X X

MEMBER NAME


	1-Tentative Agenda 12.06.2023
	December 6, 2023      2:00 p.m.
	Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center
	TENTATIVE AGENDA

	2-Delegation of Authority Items
	3-Board Minutes - 09.13.2023 DRAFT
	4-CEO 2022-2023 Annual Evaluation Summary
	5-AIS - Approval of Revised 2023-2024 Budget 9.29.23
	6-FY24 Initial Budget Update 09 29 2023
	7-AIS Clay County Office Lease Extension and Rental increase Approval
	8-Clay County  Logate LLC lease renewal 2024
	9-AIS Palatka Lease Renewal 2024
	10-Palatka Lease 2024-25 Early Learning Coalition
	11-AIS for MDR-ECS Audit
	12-MDR - ECS Audit Report 22-23
	13-AIS-Putnam County Health Designee Robyn Jernigan
	14-Jernigan, Robyn Application
	15-AIS_DCF Designee Cassandra Bloom
	16-Cassandra Bloom Application 9.28.2023
	17-Board  Membership Summary 12.6.2023
	18-Finance Manager Report 12.6.23
	19-FY24 Q1 Board Financial Statements Balance Sheet
	20-FY24 Q1 Board Financial Statements P and L
	21-Program Update 1 Qtr 23-24
	22-Minutes Exex-Admin meeting 11.01.2023 DRAFT
	23-Board Absenteeism Log through 9.13.2023

